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INTRODUCTION 

The Federal Aviation Administration and all other Respondents (collectively, "FAA") 

assert the classic deference argument. Despite FAA's attempt to characterize Petitioners' 

arguments as "flyspecking" an otherwise stellar Administrative Record ("Record"), a probing 

and careful review of that Record reveals that FAA's path to selecting the Airspace Redesign 

with Integrated Control Complex ("the Project") as the preferred alternative was infected with 

major procedural errors in violation of Section 4(f) of the Department of Transportation Act, the 

Clean Air Act ("CAA"), and the National Environmental Policy Act ("NEPA"). 

These procedural errors have led to a tainted substantive result depriving the citizens of 

the five affected states covered by the Project from fully understanding and participating in a 

decision that affects the air they breathe, the noise they experience, and the parks they enjoy. 

Vacatur and remand are the only remedies for these violations. The agency must be held 

accountable to the public for the serious environmental consequences that flow from these 

violations. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Section 4(f) 

Under Section 4(f) of the Department of Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 303, the 

Secretary of Transportation, acting through the FAA Administrator, has a heavy burden to 

analyze all potentially significant Section 4(f) resources at the federal, state and local level and 

may only approve a constructive "use" of such resources if there are no prudent and feasible 

alternatives. The Secretary may not take any "shortcuts." Yet the Record shows that is precisely 



what occurred here because FAA failed to assess approximately 235 state and local parks 

covering a five state area. In fact, FAA never contacted numerous state and local park officials 

to obtain information on these parks in order to make the crucial threshold determination whether 

the Project could potentially result in a constructive use of those resources—in direct violation of 

the express language of FAA's own procedures. Therefore, FAA's "no constructive use" 

conclusion regarding any Section 4(f) resource in the five-state study areas was procedurally 

deficient. Further, FAA lacked adequate factual data to assess the Project's impacts for two 

especially noise sensitive sites it evaluated, Rockefeller State Park Preserve in New York and 

John Heinz National Wildlife Refuge near Philadelphia. Finally, FAA erred by not allowing the 

public to comment on a critical supplemental noise analysis covering certain noise sensitive sites. 

These violations go to the very heart of the Secretary's responsibilities under Section 4(f). 

Clean Air Act 

The Record here lacks any evidence to support FAA's claim that it is either exempt from 

the conformity provision of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7506, or "presumed to conform," 

pursuant to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's ("EPA's") implementing regulations 

("Conformity Rule"), 40 C.F.R. § 93.153, et seq. On the contrary, the evidence in the Record 

supports Petitioners' claims that: 

(1) the Project's impacts are not de minimis and thus exempt. The Fuel Burn Report 

upon which FAA relies did not analyze or quantify emissions at all, let alone emissions of 

criteria pollutants and precursors, as required by §§ 93.153(c)(1) and (2) to determine a project's 

de minimis status; nor, as a result, could FAA have compared the unanalyzed criteria pollutants 

and precursors to the benchmark de minimis levels in § 93.153(b); 



(2) the Project cannot be "presumed to conform," in accordance with § 93.153(f), 

where neither the face of FAA's Presumed to Conform Rule, 72 Fed. Reg. 41,578, nor the 

Record here contains any evidence that FAA conducted any analysis of conformity using either 

"the latest and most accurate emissions estimation techniques," as required by § 93.159, or 

"similar actions taken over recent years," required by § 93.153(g)(2); 

(3) the Project's emissions are "not regionally significant," as required by 93.153(j). 

As FAA declined to calculate emissions, it had no choice but to impermissibly "defer action," 

72 Fed. Reg. 41,580, on determining the Project's regional significance. 

NEPA 

FAA's environmental analysis fails to comply with the most fundamental requirements of 

NEPA, 42 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq., and its implementing CEQ regulations, 40 C.F.R. § 1500, et 

seq., where: 

(1) FAA failed to analyze the additional flights that would be induced by any delay 

reductions achieved by the Project, despite uncontroverted evidence in the Record and FAA's 

own regulatory guidance establishing that the Project will have such growth-inducing impacts; 

(2) FAA failed to complete a noise exposure analysis for the 2012 year of Project 

implementation or any year thereafter, much less five to ten years after implementation as 

provided in FAA Order 1050. IE, App.A, § 14.4g(2), and notwithstanding substantial evidence in 

the Record of significant noise impacts on vulnerable populations occurring after 2012; 

(2) FAA impermissibly elevated the baseline for comparison with Project impacts by 

admittedly overestimating the number of 2006 flight operations at Newark, as well as other 

affected airports, in contravention of FAA Order 1050. IE, App.A, § 14.4e, thereby understating 

the Project's environmental impacts and creating inaccurate baselines for assessing impacts 


